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DATE: April 2, 2021 
 
TO:  All Bidders 
 
FROM:         Angela R. Young  

Executive Director of Contracting 
 
RE: Invitation for Bid No. 149-21, Custodial Services for Global Impact Academy 
 
Please see Addendum No. 1 for the above-referenced solicitation. 
 



 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
IFB NO. 149-21 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES FOR GLOBAL IMPACT ACADEMY 
 

 

A. The following questions were received and Fulton County Schools’ (FCS) response for the above 
referenced solicitation: 

 
1. If overnighted, would someone be available at FCS Contracting Department, The 

Administrative Center, 6201 Powers Ferry Road, Atlanta, GA 30339 a day or two before due 
date to receive/sign for the overnight documents? 
Packages should be delivered to The Fulton County Schools Administrative Center 
Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. EST.  Fulton County Schools will be 
closed for Spring Break from Monday, April 4, 2021 through Friday, April 9, 2021. 
 

2. Is the $50,000.00 fidelity bond required to be submitted with the proposal, or after award of 
the contract? 
The fidelity bond is required after the contract is awarded. 

 
3. Additional Conditions of RFP, section 10, states “Performance of Services is for eleven (11) 

months – August through June.”  Is this an 11-month contract for each year of the contract? 
Yes. 

 
4. Please explain “This is a Twelve-Month Contract with an 11-Month Performance Period.” 

Services will be performed for eleven (11) months of the calendar year and payment of 
services will be one eleventh (1/11th) of contract price but it is still considered a twelve 
(12) month contract. 

 
5. Does the school require a day porter?  If so, how many hours a day? 

Day porter services are a part of the 100 extra man hours and is used at the school’s 
discretion. 

 
6. What is the normal turnaround time for a vendor to receive results from the criminal history 

background check submitted to the FCS’ Department of Safety & Security and FCS’ Police 
Department? 
A criminal history background check turnaround time varies depending on the volume 
of requests received.   

 
7. May the vendor use propane-powered cleaning equipment in the school? 

Propane burnishers are acceptable, however propane stripping machines are not.   
 

8. Will contractor be required to strip and refinish all floors before school opens this year?  If so, 
is this priced separately? 
No, this will be done as part of the construction finishing process. 

 
9. Is there a cost to the vendor for badges issued by the FCS’ Police Department for “contract 

custodians”? 
There is no cost to vendors for contractor badges. 
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10. Please confirm who is responsible for washing exterior windows, and the frequency. 
Please see Appendix II “Cleaning Specifications for Custodial Services” in the 
solicitation. 
 

11. Does FCS consider E-Verify as an authorized federal work authorization program in 
conjunction with the bidder’s submission of the Contractor Affidavit and Agreement form? 
Yes. 

 
12. Could you please clarify whether the request for services includes day porter services or after-

hours cleaning only?  
This contract is for after hour cleaning services.  Please see response five (5). 

 
13. Is there a pre-bid conference and what is the time? 

A pre-bid conference is not scheduled for this project. 
 

14. Who is the incumbent contractor and how long have they been providing their services? 
This is a new contract with no incumbent contractor. 
 

15. What is the current contracted monthly price and yearly price? 
This is a new contract, and the requested information is not available. 
 

16. Can you provide us with the bid tab sheet form the last bid opening? 
This is a new contract, and the requested information is not available. 

 
17. Why did Global Impact Academy come up for bid at this time.?  

This is a new school site which requires custodial services. 
 

18. Can you provide the contract price and if it has been increased for the past years? 
This is a new contract, and the requested information is not available. 

 
19. Who is responsible for providing event set up and post event cleaning? 

FCS will be responsible for these services unless the 100 extra man hours option is 
exercised. 

 
20. What is required minimum wage for this contact?   

The required minimum wage for this contract is the awarded contractor’s decision. 
 

21. Prior to commencement of subsequent renewal terms, will your agent consider a request for 
price adjustments, in accordance with the current National Consumer Price Index or the 
increased minimum wage of the State? 
Please see item number 8 “Consumer Price Index”, under Additional Conditions in the 
solicitation. 
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22. Please confirm that fogging services for Covid-19 is not included in this solicitation, it is not 
part of the Scope of Work.  Do you have a separate service provider? 
Fogging services is not part of this solicitation.  Fogging services should not be performed 
without permission from FCS’ Coordinator of Environmental Services. 

 
23. What is the working schedule for night custodians and confirm if we will provide only night 

services? 
Scheduled work hours will be determined by the school’s principal.  These hours are 
generally at the end of the day after students have left the building. 

 
24. Initial Cleaning: Since this is a new construction site, will the building need post construction 

cleaning as its initial cleaning?  This is a much different service than outlined on page 34 of 
the solicitation. 
Initial cleaning should not be needed by the contractor; however, the price should be 
included per the solicitation. 
 

25. Floor Work/Carpet: The specifications are conflicting, on page 55 in the solicitation the note 
states one time per year extraction in Summer, but page 52 lists mats to be extracted for Winter, 
Spring and Summer breaks.   
a. What is the correct schedule?  

The correct schedule is stated in the solicitation.   
 

b. Do you have a mat count?   
The amount of walk off mats is still being determined.   

 

c. Are there other carpet areas?  Please provide square footage. 
Carpeted areas include the Administrative Offices and Media Center. Square footage 
for these areas are unavailable at this time. 

 

d. Total number of area rugs? 
Area rugs in the classrooms are still being determined, however, we do not generally 
have them in a high school. 

 
26. Floor Work/Corridors:  Is there any corridor floor work during any of the breaks? The 

specifications schedule does not list any. 
Please refer to the Scope of Work which requires the floors to be scrubbed daily.  
Custodial services are not required during any of the school breaks.  
 

27. Floor Work/Classroom: page 54 Note states only scrubbing during Summer break, but 
Specifications Schedule lists scrubbing winter and summer breaks.  What is the correct 
schedule?  
Please see the note at the bottom page 54.  There is a LVT reminder that states floors will 
not need to be stripped but scrubbed and does not supersede the Scope of Work 
requirements.   
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28. Summer Work:  The areas excluded from daily cleaning on page 56, are these areas to be 
cleaned during the Winter, Spring or Summer breaks? If yes, what is the total square footage 
of those areas? 
These areas are not listed in the Scope of Work.  They are excluded and do not require 
work during the breaks.  The only exception is, if one of the areas contains carpet and 
the scope requires all carpeted areas to be shampooed and extracted by the contractor 
during summer break.   
 

29. Contractor’s Cleanable Area:  The 110,417 square feet listed on page 56, is the total 
cleanable square feet to be cleaned nightly during the school year.  Does this measurement 
exclude the 10 areas excluded from nightly cleaning?  If it does include the 10 areas excluded 
from nightly cleaning, please provide the total square footage to be cleaned nightly during the 
school year.  
The areas that are not the contractor’s responsibility are not included in the total 
cleanable square footage. 

 
B. All other terms and conditions remain the same. 


